
Regular Council Meeting 

July 8, 2024 

Executive Summary 

Item #  Summary 

10A‐C  Description: Items for Action by Unanimous Consent 

Recommended Action: Motion to approve the consent agenda 
as presented. 

11A  Description: Summerfest and Resolution 2024‐19 

Recommended Action: Motion to approve, under direction of 
staff, the Hastings Summerfest Committee’s request to hold the 
annual Summerfest celebration on August 23, 24, and 25, 2024, 
at Fish Hatchery Park, Tyden Park, Parking Lots 4 and 5, various 
streets, the Spray Plaza, and the Thornapple Plaza and adopt 
Resolution 2024‐19 staying the necessary ordinances. 

11B  Description: Central Elementary PTO STOMP for Books 

Recommended Action: Motion to approve, under direction of 
staff, the Central Elementary PTO STOMP for Books fundraiser 
to be held Tuesday, September 24, 2024, from 8:00 AM to 3:00 
PM. 

11C  Description: Lead Line Replacements FY 2025 

Recommended Action: Motion to approve a contract for 
plumbing for the FY25 lead line replacements from Advantage 
Plumbing & Drain for the sum of $154,129.50. 



Item #  Summary 

11D  Description: 2024 Street Line Painting 

Recommended Action: Motion to approve a contract for 2024 
Street Line Painting with Michigan Pavement Markings for 
$34,976. 

11E  Description: Chemical Purchases 

Recommended Action: Motion to approve chemical purchases 
for the water treatment plant and wastewater treatment plant 
from: 

 WaterSolve, Polymer (WWTP): $3.30 per lb. or 16 ea.
450lb Drums at $23,760.

 USALCO, Alum (WWTP): $293.76 per wet ton at 180 wet
tons per year is $52,876.80.

 Elhorn Engineering, Phosphate (WTP): $455.00 per drum
at 60 drums per year is $27,300.

11F  Description: Superintendent Trucks 

Recommended Action: Motion to approve the purchase of two 
(2) 2024 GMC Sierra 2500HD trucks through MiDeal from Todd
Wenzel for a total of $123,992.



Council Agenda Page 1 of 3 July 8, 2024 

City of Hastings 
COUNTY OF BARRY, STATE OF MICHIGAN 

City Council Agenda 
July 8, 2024 

1. Regular meeting called to order at 7:00 PM

2. Oath of Office – Terry Stenzelbarton, Council Member for the 2nd Ward

3. Roll call

4. Pledge to the flag

* 5. Approval of the agenda

* 6. Approval of the minutes of June 24, 2024, special and regular meeting

√ 7. Public Hearings: (None)

8. Public Comment:

9. Formal Recognitions and Presentations:

A. Presentation from Dave Hatfield, Barry County Commissioner.

√ 10. Items for Action by Unanimous Consent: 

* A. Receive and place on file two (2) invoices totaling $12,400.00 as detailed in 
attachments.  

* B. Consider casting a ballot on behalf of the City of Hastings for Victor Cardenas, 
Daniel Coss, and Bridget Dean to serve four-year terms on the MML Worker’s 
Compensation Fund Board. 

* C. Consider acceptance, with regret, the resignation of Thomas Maurer from the 
Planning Commission and the Zoning Board of Appeals effective July 2, 2024. 

√ 11. Items of Business: 

* A. Consider approval, under the direction of staff, of the Hastings Summerfest 
Committee’s request to hold the annual Summerfest celebration on August 23, 
24, and 25, 2024, at Fish Hatchery Park, Tyden Park, Parking Lots # 4, and # 5, 
various streets, the Spray Plaza and Thornapple Plaza and adopt Resolution 
2024-19 staying the necessary ordinances. 

* B. Consider approval, under the direction of staff, of the Central Elementary PTO 
STOMP for Books fundraiser to be held Tuesday, September 24, 2024, from 8:00 
AM to 3:00 PM. 



Council Agenda  Page 2 of 3 July 8, 2024 

*                   C. Consider approval of a contract for plumbing for FY25 lead line replacements 
from Advantage Plumbing & Drain for the sum of $154,129.50. 

*                   D. Consider approval of a contract for 2024 Street Line Painting with Michigan 
Pavement Markings for $34,976. 

*                   E. Consider approval of chemical purchases for the water treatment plant and 
wastewater treatment plant from: 

 WaterSolve, Polymer (WWTP): $3.30 per lb. or 16 ea. 450lb Drums at 
$23,760. 

 USALCO, Alum (WWTP): $293.76 per wet ton at 180 wet tons per year is 
$52,876.80. 

 Elhorn Engineering, Phosphate (WTP):$455.00 per drum at 60 drums per 
year is $27,300. 

*                   F. Consider approval of the purchase of two (2) 2024 GMC Sierra 2500HD trucks 
through MiDeal from Todd Wenzel for a total of $123,992. 

12. Staff Presentations and Policy Discussions (None) 

13. City Manager Report: 

*                   A. Public Services Director Tate Monthly Report 
*                   B. Fire Chief Jordan Monthly Report 
*                   C. Library Director Hemerling Monthly Report 
*                   D. Assessor Rashid Monthly Report 

√        14. Reports and Communications: 

*                   A. YMCA Update June 20, 2024 
*                   B. Draft DDA Minutes June 20, 2024 
*                   C. Draft Library Board Minutes July 1, 2024 

15. Public Comment: 

16. Mayor and Council comment: 

17. Adjourn 

 
 
* Items with enclosures. 
√ Motion under agenda heading requires roll call vote. 
  



Council Agenda  Page 3 of 3 July 8, 2024 

Guidelines for Public Comment 
 

Public Comment is welcomed and appreciated. Please follow these simple guidelines to ensure all have 
an opportunity to be heard. 
 
All comments and questions will be made through the chair. All comments will be made in a courteous 
and civil manner; profanity and personal attacks will not be tolerated. Please limit the length of your 
comments to 3 minutes. If you are a member of a group, please appoint a spokesperson to speak on 
behalf of the group (those speaking on behalf of a group may be provided additional time). Please 
state your name before offering comment. 



4434 
 

Council Special Meeting Minutes  June 24, 2024 

City of Hastings 
COUNTY OF BARRY, STATE OF MICHIGAN 

  

 
City Council Special Meeting Minutes 

June 24, 2024 
 

1. Special meeting called to order at 6:30 PM 

2. Roll call 

Councilmembers Present: Brehm, Jarvis, McLean, Resseguie, and Tossava. 
 
City Staff and Appointees Present: Moyer-Cale, Kelly, King, and Tate. 
 
Bowers arrived at 6:32 PM. Nesbitt arrived at 6:33 PM. Barlow arrived at 6:37 PM. 

 
3. Pledge to the flag 

4. Approval of the agenda 

Motion by Brehm, with support from McLean, to approve the agenda as presented. 
 
All ayes. Motion carried. 

 
5. Second (2nd) Ward Councilmember Interview: Terry Stenzelbarton 

Questions from Barlow, Brehm, Jarvis, McLean, Nesbitt, Resseguie, and Tossava. 
 
Terry Stenzelbarton addressed council. 
 

6. Public Comment 

Comment from Gary White. 
 

7. Deliberation 

8. Adjourn 

Motion by McLean, with support from Resseguie, to adjourn at 6:45 PM 
 
All ayes. Motion carried. 

 
Read and Approved: 
 
 
 
________________________     ___________________________ 
David J. Tossava, Mayor      Amy Hubbell, Deputy City Clerk 
 



4435 
 

Council Minutes  June 24, 2024 

City of Hastings 
COUNTY OF BARRY, STATE OF MICHIGAN 

  

 
City Council Minutes 

June 24, 2024 
 
 

1. Regular meeting called to order at 7:00 PM 

2. Roll call 

Councilmembers Present: Barlow, Bowers, Brehm, Jarvis, McLean, Nesbitt, Resseguie, 
and Tossava. 
 
City Staff and Appointees Present: Moyer-Cale, Kelly, King, Jordan, Tate, and Wood. 

 
3. Pledge to the flag 

4. Approval of the agenda 

Tossava suggested amending the agenda by removing item #6. 
 
Motion by McLean, with support from Jarvis, to approve the agenda as amended. 
 
All ayes. Motion carried. 
 

5. Approval of the minutes of the June 10, 2024, regular meeting 

Motion by Jarvis, with support from Nesbitt, to approve the minutes of the June 10, 
2024, regular meeting. 
 
Ayes:  Barlow, Brehm, Bowers, Jarvis, McLean, Nesbitt, Resseguie, and Tossava. 
Nays:  None. 
Absent: None. 
Motion carried. 
 

6. Oath of Office: City Clerk/Treasurer William Schmidt 

7. Public Hearings: (None) 

8. Public Comment: 

Heather Wing, running for Barry County Treasurer 
Terry Dennison, Barry County Commission on Aging 
Betsy Colgan, Barry County Commission on Aging 
Courtney Ziny, Executive Director, Commission on Aging 
Gary White, Nashville 
Christine Terpening, Vermontville 
 



4436 
 

Council Minutes  June 24, 2024 

9. Formal Recognitions and Presentations: 

A. Presentation from Dave Hatfield, Barry County Commissioner. 

10. Items for Action by Unanimous Consent:  

A. Receive and place on file fourteen (14) invoices totaling $185,324.87 as detailed 
in attachments. 

 
Motion by Barlow, with support from Resseguie, to receive and place on file 
fourteen (14) invoices totaling $185,324.87 as detailed in attachments. 
 
Ayes:  Barlow, Brehm, Bowers, Jarvis, McLean, Nesbitt, Resseguie, and 
Tossava. 
Nays:  None. 
Absent: None. 
Motion carried. 

 
11. Items of Business: 

A. Deliberation and selection of 2nd Ward councilmember. 
 
Motion by Brehm, with support from Resseguie, to appoint Terry Stenzelbarton 
as Council member for the Second (2nd) Ward. 
 
Ayes:  Barlow, Brehm, Bowers, Jarvis, McLean, Nesbitt, Resseguie, and 
Tossava. 
Nays:  None. 
Absent: None. 
Motion carried. 

 
B. Second Reading and consider adoption of Ordinance 623 – Text Amendments 

to A-1 Apartment District, A-2 Apartment Edge District, and A-O Apartment and 
Office District. 

Motion by Resseguie, with support from Barlow, to adopt Ordinance 623 – Text 
Amendments to A-1 Apartment District, A-2 Apartment Edge District, and A-O 
Apartment and Office District. 
 
Ayes:  Barlow, Brehm, Bowers, Jarvis, McLean, Nesbitt, Resseguie, and 
Tossava. 
Nays:  None. 
Absent: None. 
Motion carried. 

 
C. Second Reading and consider adoption of Ordinance 624 – Text amendments 

regarding sign definitions and signs in the B‐1, B‐2, B‐3, B‐4, and B‐6 Districts. 

Motion by McLean, with support from Resseguie, to adopt Ordinance 624 – Text 
amendments regarding sign definitions and signs in the B‐1, B‐2, B‐3, B‐4, and 
B‐6 Districts. 



4437 
 

Council Minutes  June 24, 2024 

 
Ayes:  Barlow, Brehm, Bowers, Jarvis, McLean, Nesbitt, Resseguie, and 
Tossava. 
Nays:  None. 
Absent: None. 
Motion carried. 
 

D. Second Reading and consider adoption of Ordinance 625 – Text amendments 
regarding Buffer Zone Development Standards and the inclusion of Section 90‐
1014 Prohibited Species. 

Motion by Barlow, with support from McLean, to adopt Ordinance 625 – Text 
amendments regarding Buffer Zone Development Standards and the inclusion of 
Section 90‐1014 Prohibited Species. 
 
Ayes:  Barlow, Brehm, Bowers, Jarvis, McLean, Nesbitt, Resseguie, and 
Tossava. 
Nays:  None. 
Absent: None. 
Motion carried. 
 

E. Consider adoption of Resolution 2024-17 to update fees for various city 
services effective July 1, 2024. 

Comment from Tossava. 

Motion by McLean, with support from Jarvis, to adopt Resolution 2024-17 to 
update fees for various city services effective July 1, 2024. 
 
Ayes:  Barlow, Brehm, Bowers, Jarvis, McLean, Nesbitt, Resseguie, and 
Tossava. 
Nays:  None. 
Absent: None. 
Motion carried. 
 

F. Consider adoption of Resolution 2024-18 as presented to amend the Fiscal 
Year 2023-2024 Budget. 

Motion by Resseguie, with support from Nesbitt, to adopt Resolution 2024-18 as 
presented to amend the Fiscal Year 2023-2024 Budget. 
 
Ayes:  Barlow, Brehm, Bowers, Jarvis, McLean, Nesbitt, Resseguie, and 
Tossava. 
Nays:  None. 
Absent: None. 
Motion carried. 
 

G. Consider appointment of Jeff Sluggett to serve as city attorney representing the 
City of Hastings for matters related to code enforcement. 

Comments from Jessica Wood, City Attorney. 



4438 
 

Council Minutes  June 24, 2024 

 
Motion by Barlow, with support from McLean, to appoint Jeff Sluggett to serve as 
city attorney representing the City of Hastings for matters related to code 
enforcement. 
 
Ayes:  Barlow, Brehm, Bowers, Jarvis, McLean, Nesbitt, Resseguie, and 
Tossava. 
Nays:  None. 
Absent: None. 
Motion carried. 
 

H. Consider approval of one of the three City Hall landscape design build options 
based on the presentation and design. 

Comments from Resseguie, Jarvis, and Tossava. 
 
Comments from City Manager Moyer-Cale. 
 
Motion by Bowers, with support from Barlow, to approve the proposal for City 
Hall landscape design from Harder & Warner Landscapes, Inc, totaling $6104.04. 
 
Ayes:  Barlow, Bowers, Brehm, McLean, and Tossava. 
Nays:  Jarvis, Nesbitt, and Resseguie. 
Absent: None. 
Motion carried. 
 

I. Consider authorizing DPS Staff to place old dump trucks 80 and 350 on 
Rangerbid for sale. 

Comment from Tossava. 

Motion by McLean, with support from Resseguie, to authorize DPS Staff to place 
old dump trucks 80 and 350 on Rangerbid for sale. 
 
Ayes:  Barlow, Brehm, Bowers, Jarvis, McLean, Nesbitt, Resseguie, and 
Tossava. 
Nays:  None. 
Absent: None. 
Motion carried. 
 

12. Staff Presentations and Policy Discussions (None) 

13. City Manager Report: 

City Manager Moyer-Cale addressed Council. 
 
A. Deputy Police Chief Julissa Kelly presented Chief Boulter’s monthly report and 

addressed council. 
B. The monthly financial reports were presented. 
C. Community Development Director King presented his monthly report. 

 



4439 
 

Council Minutes  June 24, 2024 

14. Reports and Communications: 

A. May 8, 2024, Riverside Cemetery Preservation Advisory Board Minutes 
B. July 2024 Calendar 

Motion by McLean, with support from Barlow, to accept and place on file items A-B. 
 
All ayes. Motion carried. 
 

15. Public Comment: 

Gary White 
Courtney Ziny 
Dave Hatfield 
 

16. Mayor and Council comment: 

Questions from Bowers and McLean. 
 
Comments from Jarvis, Resseguie, and Tossava. 
 

17. Closed Session 

A. Consider recessing to closed session at the conclusion of regular business as 
permitted by PA 267 of 1976, Section 15.268-8(h) to consider material exempt 
from disclosure by state or federal statue (to receive privileged attorney-client 
communication). 

Motion by McLean, with support from Jarvis, to recess to closed session at the 
conclusion of regular business as permitted by PA 267 of 1976, Section 15.268-
8(h) to consider material exempt from disclosure by state or federal statue (to 
receive privileged attorney-client communication). 
 
Ayes:  Barlow, Brehm, Bowers, Jarvis, McLean, Nesbitt, Resseguie, and 
Tossava. 
Nays:  None. 
Absent: None. 
Motion carried. 
 

B. Recess to closed session at 7:55 PM. 

C. Adjourn back to open session at 8:48 PM. 

18. Consider approval of an amendment to the agenda. 

Motion by McLean, with support from Jarvis, to amend the agenda to include two 
additional action items: one relating to property access and repayment 
agreement and one relating to a potential 425 agreement. 
 
Ayes:  Barlow, Brehm, Bowers, Jarvis, McLean, Nesbitt, Resseguie, and 
Tossava. 
Nays:  None. 



4440 
 

Council Minutes  June 24, 2024 

Absent: None. 
Motion carried. 
 

19. Consider authorizing the City Manager to negotiate and finalize a property access and 
repayment agreement with Jerold Saeman. 

Motion by McLean, with support from Jarvis, to authorize the City Manager to 
negotiate and finalize a property access and repayment agreement with Jerold 
Saeman. 
 
Ayes:  Barlow, Brehm, Bowers, Jarvis, McLean, Nesbitt, Resseguie, and 
Tossava. 
Nays:  None. 
Absent: None. 
Motion carried. 
 

20. Consider authorizing the City Manager and City Attorney to begin discussions relating to 
a potential 425 Agreement. 

Motion by McLean, with support from Resseguie, to authorize the City Manager 
and City Attorney to begin discussions relating to a potential 425 Agreement. 
 
Ayes:  Barlow, Brehm, Bowers, Jarvis, McLean, Nesbitt, Resseguie, and 
Tossava. 
Nays:  None. 
Absent: None. 
Motion carried. 
 

21. Adjourn 

Motion by Resseguie, with support from Barlow, to adjourn at 8:58 PM. 
 
All ayes. Motion carried. 

 
Read and Approved: 
 
 
 
________________________     ___________________________ 
David J. Tossava, Mayor      Amy Hubbell, Deputy City Clerk 
 



Summary - City of Hastings Invoices
City Council Meeting

July 8, 2024

No. Vendor Amount Description (with date paid)
1 Murray's Asphalt $6,750.00 6/27/24 Asphalt Patching lead line replacements

2 Piedmont Technical Services $5,650.00 6/27/24 WWTP UV Disinfection System Repair, Service

2 Invoices $12,400.00

ATTACHMENT ‐ AGENDA ITEM 9A

10.A







Regular Council 
Agenda Item Memorandum 

To: Hastings City Council 

From: Sarah Moyer‐Cale, City Manager 

Subject: MML Worker’s Comp Fund Ballot 

Meeting Date: July 8, 2024 

Recommended Action:  

Motion to cast a ballot on behalf of the City of Hastings for Victor Cardenas, Daniel Coss, and 

Bridget Dean to serve 4‐year terms on the MML Worker’s Compensation Fund Board.   

Background Information:  

As members of the MML Worker’s Comp Fund, we may vote for board members. Ballots must 

be cast by action of the governing body.  

Financial Implications:  

None. 

Attachments: 

 Letter from the Fund Administrator regarding the election

 Candidate Bio

10.B







10.C



Regular Council 
Agenda Item Memorandum 

To: Mayor Tossava and City Council 

From: Dan King 

Subject: Hastings Summerfest 2024 Request 

Meeting Date: July 8, 2024 

Recommended Action:  

Approve, under direction of staff, the Hastings Summerfest Committee request to hold the 

annual Summerfest celebration on August 23, 24, and 25, 2024 at Fish Hatchery Park, Tyden 

Park, Parking Lots # 4, and # 5, various streets, the Spray Plaza and Thornapple Plaza and adopt 

Resolution 2024‐19 staying the necessary ordinances. 

Background Information:  

The Hastings Summerfest Committee has conducted this annual event the last full weekend in 

August for over 40 years. This annual event has something for everyone including music, food, 

car show, parade, arts and crafts, and a beverage tent that serves as a meeting place for high 

school reunions and a homecoming site for many current and former residents of the City of 

Hastings. The special event application is under review by City staff for event coordination. 

Resolution 2024‐19 will stay: 

Section 6‐1; Sections 22‐1 and 22‐2; Sections 58‐34, 58‐35 (3) and (4), 37 (2) and (4), and 

Section 58‐38 (a), (g), (h), and (i). 

Financial Implications:  

Summerfest Committee reimburses the City for direct expenses incurred during the event. 

Attachments: 

 Resolution 2024‐19

 Hastings Summerfest Committee Request Letter

 Special Event Application

11.A



Resolution 2024-19 Page 1 of 1 July 8, 2024
  
  

City Of Hastings 
COUNTY OF BARRY, STATE OF MICHIGAN 

__________________________           
    

RESOLUTION 2024-19 
 

TO STAY THE NECESSARY ORDINANCES TO HOLD SUMMERFEST FESTIVAL 
ACTIVITIES AT FISH HATCHERY PARK, TYDEN PARK, PARKING LOTS # 4 and #5, 
VARIOUS STREETS, AND ENTERTAINMENT VENUES ON AUGUST 23, 24, 
AND 25, 2024 

 
WHEREAS, the Barry County Chamber of Commerce Summerfest Committee, by way of correspondence, 
has requested the use of Fish Hatchery Park, Parking Lots #4 and #5, various streets, and entertainment 
venues for the purpose of holding a festival which promotes and celebrates the City of Hastings on 
August 23, 24, and 25, 2024 and for use of Tyden Park on August 24, 2024 for a basketball tournament; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Hastings at its regular meeting on July 8, 2024, approved the 
location of Fish Hatchery Park and Parking Lots #4 and #5, various streets, and entertainment venues 
on August 23, 24, and 25 and Tyden Park on August 24, 2024; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Summerfest Committee desires to ensure the Summerfest Festival is conducted in good 
taste and in accordance with all laws and regulations, now 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City of Hastings hereby stays for August 23, 24, and 25, 2024 
under Section 2-34 of the Hastings City Code, the following Ordinances: 

 
Section 6-1; Sections 22-1 and 22-2; 

Sections 58-34, 58-35 (3) and (4), 37 (2) and (4), and 
Section 58-38 (a), (g), (h), and (i). 

 
 

A motion to adopt the foregoing resolution being offered by Member________, with support by 
Member________: 
 
YEAS:  
NAYS:  
ABSENT:  
 
MOTION DECLARED _______________ 
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was adopted at a duly held and attended regular meeting 
the 8th day of July 2024, by the City Council of the City of Hastings, by a vote of ___ members voting in 
favor thereof, ___ members voting against, and ___ member(s) absent. 
 
              
     ______________________________ 
      Amy Hubbell 
      Deputy City Clerk 



Hastings Summerfest Committee
June 17, 2024

Hon. David J. Tossava
City Council Members
201 East State Street
Hastings, Michigan 49058

Re:  Summerfest Request

Dear Mayor Tossava and Council Members:

On behalf of the 2024 Summerfest Committee, we respectfully request a stay of the City
of Hastings Ordinances contained in Chapters 6 and 58 for the dates of  August 23, August 24 ,
and August 25, 2024 to the area known as Fish Hatchery Park and the area known as Parking Lot
#4.  We are also requesting certain street usage and street closings during the festival.  These
requests are subject to compliance with guidelines received from the City as well as from the
local health department.

It is the purpose of the Hastings Summerfest Committee, a sub-committee of the Barry
County Chamber of Commerce, to organize a yearly three day festival which promotes and
celebrates the City of Hastings.  Our mission is to ensure that this festival is done in good taste
and in accordance with all laws and regulations.  In order for Summerfest to function in this
location, we respectfully request the council of the City of Hastings to stay the following
ordinances pursuant to the authority of the Council in Ordinance 2-34.  Each of the ordinances,
and our reasoning for our request, is stated below.  If for any reason the Council has further
concerns, please feel free to contact our committee or one of us, and we will be happy to further
elaborate.

Section 6-1 relates to the Elks Club beverage tent.  The tent will, upon the consent of the
Council, be located in Parking Lot # 4 on the corner of Apple and Church Streets.  Alcoholic
beverages would be sold on Friday and Saturday only by a vendor properly licensed by the liquor
control commission.  Alcohol will be consumed only in a designated fenced-in area which will
be patrolled and regulated by private individuals.  This fenced area will meet all requirements set
forth by Police Chief Boulter and the Michigan Liquor Control Commission.  It is not our
intention to allow alcohol in any other portion of the downtown area and none will be tolerated.

Section 58-38 - Prohibited Uses.  We are requesting stays to (a), (g), (h), and (i) in order
to allow crafters, non-profit organizers, and service clubs to display wares, sell goods, and
provide entertainment to the public within Fish Hatchery park.  We expect that Fish Hatchery
Park use will be limited to athletic events at the softball field and soccer field and some food and
soft drink vendors near these athletic fields.

221 West State Street • Hastings, Michigan 49058 • Phone (269) 945-3025 • Fax (269) 945-3839



Sections 22-1 and 22-2 - Sidewalk Displays.  The retailers have also requested that they
be allowed to display their wares on the sidewalks downtown Friday and Saturday the 23rd  and
24th of August, 2024.

We are also asking permission to use Parking Lot #5 on the west side of Church Street. 
The area was reserved in past years and proved of significant assistance in providing parking for
the workers and volunteers at the festival.  This year it may also be used for the farmer’s market
on Saturday August 24th. 

The street closings and usages requested are as follows:

1. Church Street between State Street and Court Street and Church Street between
Court Street and Center Street and Church Street between State Street and Apple
Street commencing on Thursday evening, August 22, 2024 through Sunday
August 25, 2024  for use by commercial food vendors during the festival, events
on the both sides of Church Street and the car show.

2. Center Street between Broadway and Church Street from Thursday, August 23,
2024,through Sunday August 25, 2024

3. Parking Lot #4 from Thursday, August 22, 2024, through Sunday August 25, 2024
for the Elks beverage tent.

4. The closure on Sunday August 25,2024 from early morning to about 5:00 p.m. of
State Street between Broadway and Boltwood as well as Michigan from Apple
Street to Center Street, Jefferson from Apple Street to Court Street, Court Street
from Michigan to Jefferson, and the parking lot on the corner of Apple and
Jefferson for the car show.

5. The use of Michigan, State Street, Boltwood, Railroad, Church, Apple and
Broadway Streets for the parade on Saturday August 24, 2024, at about 11:30 a.m
and earlier in the day for the 5K run.  The parade route and the run route will be
worked out and final closures pursuant to co-ordination with the Hastings City
Police.  This should reflect the route utilized over the last several years.  The usual
assistance of the Hastings City Police during the parade is also requested.

6. The use of Court Street between Broadway and the entry to Hastings City Bank
parking lot commencing on Thursday evening, August 22, 2024 through Sunday
August 25, 2024.

7. The use of the band shell at the Splash Park Friday, August 23 through Sunday
August 25, 2024 for an entertainment venue.

8. The use of the Thornapple Plaza stage and band shell from Thursday August 22,
2024 through Sunday August 25, 2024 for an entertainment venue and church
services. 

221 West State Street • Hastings, Michigan 49058 • Phone (269) 945-3025 • Fax (269) 945-3839



The Committee is also requesting the assistance of the City in placing the banner across
State Street between Huntington Bank and the courthouse lawn as soon after the Barry County
Fair as practical but not later that the week before the festival.

The Committee is also requesting the use of Tyden Park on Saturday August 24, 2024 for
the basketball tournament.

Thank you for your consideration of this request. Please let us know your thoughts at your
earliest convenience.

Yours very truly,

                         
Robert L. Byington

                         Co-Chairperson, Summerfest

RLB/rlb
cc BCACC, 

Brent Cowan

221 West State Street • Hastings, Michigan 49058 • Phone (269) 945-3025 • Fax (269) 945-3839



Page 1 of 5 

City of Hastings 

Special Event Application 

The City of Hastings values the unique events and gatherings that make our community special. The City 

has created this application form to help organizations provide adequate information for their requests 

to be considered. Please contact the Community Development Department with any questions or 

concerns about this form.  

Section 1: Applicant/Organization Information 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Applicant/Organization Name Phone 

_____________________________________________________________________________________

Contact Name           Phone                            Email 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Street         City        State   Zip 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Contact person on day of event (if different than above)    Phone   

Section 2: Event Information 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Name of Event  

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Description of Event 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Event Dates                                                                                  Time (From/To) 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Set up Date(s) and Time(s)  Clean Up Date(s) and Time(s) 

Hastings Summerfest Committee                                                                                 269-945-2454

Robert Byington                                           269-945-9557                              robert@depotlawoffice.com

221 West State Street. Hastings, MI 49058

Hastings Summerfest

City-wide festival

August  23,24 and 25, 2024

August  22 and 23, 2024



Page 2 of 5 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Location(s) of Event  

_____________________________________________________________________________________

Estimated number of volunteers                                                             Estimated daily attendance (if known) 

Section 3: Event Details 

Please indicate if any of the following will be a part of your event area: 

 Road closure 

o If checked, please provide a proposed detour route.

 Closure of public parking area 

 Use of park area 

 Firepits/open flame 

 Fireworks or pyrotechnics 

o If yes, provide a copy of liability insurance listing the City as an additional insured party.

 Food and/or non-alcoholic beverage service or sales (if yes, contact Barry County Health 

Department) 

o If yes, provide copy of Health Department Food Service License

 Temporary structures (including tents or pavilions) 

 Music 

o If yes, what time will music begin and end? _________________________________

o If yes, what type of music is proposed?   Live – Acoustic     Live - Amplification   Recorded

Loudspeakers or public address system

 Parade 

 Race (ex: 5K) 

 Vendors/sale of goods 

 Carnival rides 

o If yes, provide a copy of liability insurance listing the City as an additional insured party.

 Signs or banners 

 Animals/petting zoo 

 Portable restroom facilities 

 Donation collection/free will offering 

 Other______________________________________________________________________ 

 Alcohol 

o If yes, provide copy of liquor liability insurance with the City listed as an additional

insured.

o If yes, provide a copy of Michigan Liquor Control License.

o If yes, describe measures to be taken to prohibit the sale of alcohol to minors (use

separate pages if necessary).

o If the alcohol is being served in the Social District, a Council Resolution suspending the

district is required.

x

x
x

x

x
x

x

x
x
x

x

x

x



Page 3 of 5 

Please describe how garbage will be managed? 

_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Section 4: Site & Event Plan 

Please prepare a site plan that includes the following information: 

Location of all temporary structures, food/concessions, booths, portable restrooms, road closures, 

barricades, music, event signage, garbage cans, and other event locations. Include location of exit 

pathways.  

Activity leaders will  dispose of  trash in their own area.  City DPS will take   care of the remainder.



Page 4 of 5 
 

Section 5: Acknowledgements and Hold Harmless Agreement 

The Applicant understands and agrees to the following: 

1. This application is subject to review by various city departments and must be approved by the 

City Council. Failure to submit this application in a timely manner may delay approval or result in 

the denial of the application. Submission of the application does not guarantee an approval. The 

City may require conditions on the approval of any application.  

2. The applicant must comply with all local and applicable state laws and policies. The Applicant 

acknowledges that approval of the special event does not relieve the applicant from meeting 

any requirements of law or those of other bodies or agencies applicable to the event.  

3. The Applicant agrees to clean up and restore the area in the condition it was found prior to the 

event. The City is not responsible for equipment or personal items left on public property.  

4. The Applicant acknowledges that they shall not discriminate against any employee or applicant 

for employment because race, color, religion, sex, national origin, age, disability, or any other 

applicable status protected by federal, state, or local law. The Applicant further agrees that it 

will comply with the Civil Rights Act of 1973, as amended, and the Michigan Civil Rights Act of 

1976 (78. Stat 252 and 1976 PA 453) and will require the same of any consultant or sub-

contractor involved in hosting the event.  

5. Upon approval of the event, the Applicant agrees to fully defend, indemnify and hold harmless 

the City, its City Council, its officers, employees, agents, volunteers, and contractors from any 

and all claims, demands, losses, obligations, costs, expenses, verdicts, and settlements (including 

but not limited to attorney fees and interest) resulting from any act or omission by the 

applicant, its agents, employees, contractors, and volunteers, and violation of state or federal 

law, and any other acts of the applicant or attendees causing personal injury or property 

damages in connection with this event.  

6. A breach in any of the above may result in the denial of the application or revocation of an 

approval by the City.  

 

 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Printed Name of Applicant & Name of Organization  

 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

Signature          Date 

 

 

 

 

 



Page 5 of 5 
 

Section 6: City Review – For Office Use Only  

 

A. Police Department Review: 

Will this event require additional officers and/or equipment?  If yes, please describe:  

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Other Comments:  

B. Public Services Director Review 

Will this event require the use of any of the following municipal equipment? 

___Trash receptacles     ___Barricades         ___Traffic cones        ___Restroom Cleaning 

___Fencing                       ___Water or Electric               ___Other 

  

Will this event require additional staff? If yes, please describe:  

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Other Comments:  

 

C. Fire Chief Review 

Comments: 

 

 

D. Community Development Department Review 

Comments: 

 

 

 

Date of Meeting for Council Approval _____________  Approved?  ____ Yes  _____ No 



Regular Council 
Agenda Item Memorandum 

To: Mayor Tossava and City Council 

From: Dan King 

Subject: Central Elementary PTO STOMP for Books 

Meeting Date: July 8, 2024 

Recommended Action:  

Approve, under direction of staff, Central Elementary PTO STOMP for Books fundraiser to be 
held Tuesday, September 24, 2024, from 8:00 AM to 3:00 PM. 

Background Information:  

Central Elementary annually holds a STOMP for Books fundraiser. Students and parents raise 

funds via a walk‐a‐thon at the school. All Central Elementary students, staff, and volunteers 

participate in the day long event that is one of the highlights for the school year. 

Staff has reviewed the request.  

Financial Implications:  

There are nominal financial implications for the City. 

Attachments: 

 Central Elementary PTO Special Event Application

11.B











Regular Council 
Agenda Item Memorandum 

To:  City Council  

From:  Travis J. Tate, P.E., Director of Public Services 

Subject: FY25 Lead Line Replacement Program – Plumbing Contract 

Meeting Date:  July 8, 2024 

Recommended Action:  

Approve of contract for plumbing for FY 25 lead line replacements from Advantage Plumbing & 

Drain for the sum of $154,129.50. 

Background Information:  

The city requires a licensed plumber to connect new water services to a meter.  There were two 

bidders.  Advantage was the low bid, and the other was Brik Plumbing for $214,500.00.  The 

engineers estimate was $200,000.00. 

Financial Implications:  

This work is in the budget and is under budget. 

Attachments: 

Attachment A 

Bid Tab 

11.C



1 
Attachment A  June 5, 2024   

 
 

Attachment A 
 

Fiscal Year 2025 Proposed Lead Line Replacement Program 

Plumbing Contract 
 
 

A.  Description:  
 

1. This contract is part Lead Line Replacement Program for the City of Hastings, which 
is to replace existing lead or galvanized water services in the entire city.  The 

program will replace (Beginning August ’24 and Ending May ‘25) approximately 100 
services from the existing watermain to the meter connection inside the house or 
building. 

   
2. The City will be responsible for removing existing water services, curb stops & 

boxes, and placing new copper services with new corporation stops, curb stops and 

boxes.   
 

3. The typical method for The Contractor will be to place a roll of copper tubing 

(provided by the city) inside of the house to be pulled from the outside, by the City, 
along with the existing water service.   The copper roll shall be long enough to 
connect the meter to the curb stop.   

 
4. In the event the City cannot pull the existing and new service.  The City will excavate 

a trench from the curb stop to the wall of the house.  the Contractor will be 
responsible to place the service from outside the house to the inside of the house. 

 
5. A coupling connection, generally, will not be required by the Contractor, provided 

the service is successfully pulled from the house to curb box. However, in the event 

a coupling connection is necessary, the Contractor shall provide the coupling.  
 

6. The City will make initial coordination with homeowner (property owner). The City 
will inform the Contractor of the address, and contact information of homeowner,  

along with date of scheduled replacement. After the initial contact from the City, the 
Contractor shall be responsible to coordinate with the City (DPS) and homeowner 
(property owner) for each proposed water service lead line replacement.  

 



2 
Attachment A  June 5, 2024   

7. Contractor shall be a licensed plumber with the State of Michigan.   

 
8. Contractor shall be responsible for placing the new copper service from the meter 

(inside the house) through the house wall and connecting to the city placed new 
service (outside the house).  All services shall be Copper, Type K, for both inside and 

outside the house. All fittings shall be brass inside the home.  Contractor shall 
jackhammer and/or remove concrete of basement wall/floor to remove existing 
service, install new concrete/hydraulic cement as needed and sealing connection 

through wall, both inside and out. 
 

9. The typical distance from meter to wall is 18 inches, but could vary.  The Contractor 
shall be responsible for any additional cost for service connections to the meter over 

18 inches. 
 

10. The City shall furnish the meter fittings to the Contractor who to install the meter 

connection.  If a new meter is needed, the City shall furnish to the Contractor to 

install the new meter at no addition cost to the City. 

 

11. In the event a new service location is required, or a new meter location is required, 

then the contractor will inform the Superintendent of Streets & Construction, 

submit a change order request to the Director of Public services for review.  If 

Change Order is warranted, then the City Manager shall approve said Change Order.  

 

12. The City shall furnish and install a new meter and R900 radio read device for each 

service.   

 

13. A new shutoff valve shall be furnished and installed by the Contractor.  It shall be 

placed between the meter and interior of the foundation/basement wall.  All fittings 

required for this shall be furnished and installed by the Contractor. 

 
14. Contractor shall be responsible for acquiring a plumbing permit (including fee) for 

each service, with Professional Code Inspectors (PCI). PCI is located at 110 W. Center 
Street, Suite A, Hastings, MI  49058. Phone number is (269) 948-4088. 

 

15. Contractor shall be responsible for providing and installing, a wood, access panel 
inside the house, if requested by the City, at no additional cost to the City.  The 
access panel shall be painted to match existing color wall. 

 

16. Any finish wall repair that is needed (such as dry wall, brick, finished wood panels, 

ect.) shall be an additional cost paid by the City.  The Contractor shall subcontract 
this work to a qualified contractor, and approved by the City.  A Change Order shall 
be submitted to the Director of Public Services and shall be approved by the City 

Manager before work commences. 



3 
Attachment A  June 5, 2024   

 

17. Contractor shall submit shop drawings or product data information at least two 

weeks prior to installation. 
 

18. The contractor receiving the bid award will provide proof of insurance in the amount 
shown on the attached policy prior to commencement of work.  Insurance will be 

kept current and in full force throughout the duration of the work.  
 

19. The contractor will have all safety programs included in the attached contractor’s 
checklist in place throughout the duration of work. 

 

20. Contractors will show satisfactory evidence that they have performed similar work 
for at least five consecutive years previously, and that they have adequate 
equipment and labor to perform the work in a timely fashion. 

 

21. Any damage to existing City utilities or structures will be replaced by the contractor 
at the contractors’ sole expense. 

 

22. Any damage to Homeowners property, will be replaced by the contractor at the 

contractors’ sole expense. 
 

23. Contingencies will not be paid unless there is (an) approved Change Order(s) that 
require additional cost to the contract. 

 

24. A pre-construction meeting will be required 1 week minimum before construction 
activities will start. The Contractor will be responsible for coordinating with the city.  

 

25. Ten percent of the full contract price will be withheld from payment, until after final 

completion.  
 

26. A three hundred (300) dollar per day disincentive fee, will be applied to the contract 

for each business day (Monday through Friday) the project continues after the 
stated completion date.  This amount will be taken out of the final payment (ten 
percent) of the contract and retained by the City.  

  



4 
Attachment A  June 5, 2024   

 

B. Bid Prices:  

 
Please complete the following bid tabulation.  The City reserves the right to reduce or increase the 

contract up to thirty percent (30%).  The Engineer’s estimate of probable cost is $200,000.00. 

Description 

 

Quantity  Unit Price 

 

Total 

Water Service Connection 
 

100 Each 

  

  

Construction Subtotal:       

Add 5% of Subtotal for Mobilization and 

General Conditions       

Add 5% of Subtotal for Contingencies       

  

 

    

 

  

FY 2025 Lead Line Replacement Bid Total:        

 

  

 

 

 

 





Regular Council 
Agenda Item Memorandum 

To:  City Council  

From:  Travis J. Tate, P.E., Director of Public Services 

Subject: Street Line Painting Contract 

Meeting Date:  July 8, 2024 

Recommended Action:  

Approve a contract for 2024 Street Line Painting with Michigan Pavement Markings for 

$34,976.00. 

Background Information:  

This contract will include long line painting, parking stripes and symbols for streets, parking lots, 

and parks. 

Financial Implications:  

This item is in the budget. 

Attachments: 

Bid Tab 

11.D



Process Final Sign Off By:     ON:       
               CLERK’S REPRESENTATIVE          DATE 

City of Hastings 
COUNTY OF BARRY, STATE OF MICHIGAN 

               
 

Sealed Bid Opening Results 
 

Procurement Number:       [Assigned by Clerk’s Office] 
 
B id Name:               
 
Opening Date & Time:________________________________________________ 
 

 
Vender Bids: 
 
Name:_____________________________________        Amount: _____________________________________ 
 
Name:_____________________________________        Amount: _____________________________________ 
 
Name:_____________________________________        Amount: _____________________________________ 
 
Name:_____________________________________        Amount: _____________________________________ 
 
Name:_____________________________________        Amount: _____________________________________ 
 
Name:_____________________________________        Amount: _____________________________________ 
 
Name:_____________________________________        Amount: _____________________________________ 
 
Name:_____________________________________        Amount: _____________________________________ 
 
Name:_____________________________________        Amount: _____________________________________ 
 
Present at 
Opening:________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 

 

 

Bid Granted to: _______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 

PO #:     ISSUED TO:         ON:      
            APPROVED VENDOR    DATE 



Regular Council 
Agenda Item Memorandum 

To:  City Council  

From:  Travis J. Tate, P.E., Director of Public Services 

Subject: Water and Wastewater Treatment Plant – Chemical Proposals 

Meeting Date:  July 8, 2024 

Recommended Action:  

Approve chemical purchases for the water treatment plant and wastewater treatment plant 

from: 

 WaterSolve, Polymer (WWTP):  $3.30 per lb. or 16 ea. 450lb Drums at $23,760.00

 USALCO, Alum (WWTP):  $293.76 per wet ton at 180 wet tons per year is $52,876.80

 Elhorn Engineering, Phosphate (WTP):  $455.00 per drum at 60 drums per year is

$27,300.00.

Background Information:  

We did not seek alternate proposals for polymer, alum and phosphate.  Polymer that we use 

works best with our press and provides an optimum state of our sludge.  With Alum, we are 

using the lowest level ‘mercury free’ that is available.  This is important when we test for 

mercury. We are currently in the process of requesting chemical analysis for other suppliers of 

alum to compare with our current vendor to see if there are alternatives that could be used for 

future years. Phosphate is imperative that we stay with the current supplier for lead line 

leaching prevention. 

Financial Implications:  

All Items are in the budget and under budget. 

Attachments: 

• Chemical Breakdown by V. Robins

• WaterSolve Proposal

• USALCO Email Quote

• Elhorn Engineering Proposal

11.E



Chemicals for Water 

Elhorn Engineering 

Phosphate – Carus 8600 30‐gallon drum $455.00 each. 60 drums a year 10 per order. 

Wastewater 

WaterSolve 

Polymer – WaterSolve $3.30/lb. 16 barrels a year on average. 8 per order.  

USALCO 

Alum – 293.76/wet ton. We order 4000 gallons every 6 weeks based on the needs of the plant and 

phosphate levels. 



WaterSolve LLC

5031 68th Street SE

Caledonia, MI  49316

ph - 616-575-8693

fax - 616-575-9031

www.gowatersolve.com

TO: SHIP TO:

Hastings Wastewater Treatment Plant
201 E. State St. 825 W. Apple Street
Hastings,MI 49050 Hasting, MI 49058

 1-269-945-3083  
Assumptions: 

 

Pricing is for Hastings normal 8 drum shipment

 

REP Ship Date VIA Date
BS To Be Determined LTL Carrier 21-Jun-24

                            Description Amount*
3600 Solve 9274 Polymer - 8 Qty - 450 lb drums $3.30 /lb. $11,880.00

  Standard LTL Freight Delivered to Hastings,MI 49050 Included in Price   
  

This Sales Proposal is subject to WaterSolve's Standard Terms & Conditions which are incorporated by reference and 
the additional Terms and Conditions of Sale listed on page 2.  This Sales Proposal is valid June 21, 2024 - June 21, 2025
CA Contractor's License # 996207

Brian Schaab Thank you for this opportunity to quote this project with your company.
brians@gowatersolve.com

Signature & PO#: _____________________________________________________

WaterSolve LLC

5031 68th Street SE

Caledonia, MI  49316

F.O.B.
Delivered
Unit PriceItem Code

Net 30
Terms

Freight

City of Hastings Purchasing

Polymer

Proposal

Quantity
H062124

 Rev. 12/14 Page 1

http://www.gowatersolve.com/
mailto:brians@gowatersolve.com


In addition to WaterSolve's Standard Terms & Conditions, the following terms apply to this Sales Proposal unless otherwise noted above:
○ A Geotextile dewatering performance trial, chemical conditioning program, and hanging bag performance test are required before start up.
○ Customer shall complete a Credit Application at the time of the initial order.
○ The Contract Price excludes all taxes (sales and use), special delivery, freight surcharges after proposal date, or freight differentials for quantities smaller than the volumes listed

    on page 1.  The Contract Price is in US Dollars ($).
○ Customer shall prepare the lay-down area and verify (0.0% side to side and maximum 0.5% end to end) in accordance with WaterSolve's Standard Terms & Conditions.
○ Customer shall be responsible for any change in project design or material character including all resulting change orders.  Costs to implement Customer design changes after 
    design approval shall be charged at WaterSolve's customary hourly rate.
○ Customer is responsible for all permitting with applicable regulatory agencies.
○ Customer is responsible for all site conditions, including the presence, handling and disposal of hazardous materials.  WaterSolve disclaims any responsibility, liability, or duty 
    to investigate site conditions.  Empty tote and drum containers are the customer's responsibility for disposal.
○ Fuel is provided by others unless specified in the proposal.
○ Gas monitoring is provided by others unless specified in the proposal.
○ Unspecified debris removal (non-native materials) located in the area to be pumped out is the responsibility of others, and any costs/delays due to debris removal will result in standby rates.
○  If Seller is engaged to provide on-site services, Seller will provide such services Monday – Saturday, not to exceed 10 hours  per day.
○ Customer shall notify WaterSolve of any special wage requirements at time of order.  Special wage requirements may result in increased daily rates from those listed on page 1.

                Daily rates include travel and on-site time.  Holidays will be charged at double the daily rate, if worked, and at normal daily rate if standby is required after mobilization, unless otherwise 
                specified in the proposal.

○ Equipment Rental includes mixing manifold, injection port, sampling ports, and Geotextile injection ports (all schedule 40 PVC with cam-lock fittings), as applicable.  Equipment rental is 
   one-month minimum.  Rental rates shall be pro-rated after each complete month. 
○ Project Work Order must be completed before beginning of project.  Additional work outside of the Sales Proposal may cause additional charges and delays.
○ Clean water and electrical power to polymer make-down unit are to be provided by others.
○ Custom made products require one half of Product cost paid at time of order.  Restocking fees on custom size products may apply.
○ Customer shall pay mobilization charges when mobilization to the job site is complete.   Mobilization charges include travel, shipping and expenses to transport the personnel and equipment to
    the site and one day of time for set up at the site unless otherwise noted.  After one day on-site, daily rates apply until the project is complete.  If delays are encountered that do not require 
    WaterSolve to be on site and provided Customer timely notifies WaterSolve, Customer shall pay WaterSolve its Standby Rate equal to two thirds of WaterSolve's established daily wage 
    rates.  A change in project start date may result in mobilization penalties.  
○ Standby rates will be at normal daily rates for any equipment on site.
○ Polymer selection and quantity and geotextile capacity is based upon testing of Customer's sample.  The Sales Proposal assumes that samples obtained are representative of the site.  

                Customer hereby assumes the entire responsibility and liability for testing and determining the site conditions and material characteristics, and obtaining and providing Wastersolve samples 
                representative of the material to be treated.  Watersolve is not responsible for familiarizing or determining the actual site conditions or testing of any material characteristics to determine if the 
                samples provided are representative of all materials present.  Therefore,  WaterSolve makes no implied warranty of any kind that its Product(s) are suitable for Customer's intended use.    
                Customer understands that the material characteristics or any other factors of the sample provided to Watersolve, by Customer, may differ from the actual site conditions.   Customer further 
                understands that the sampling techniques such as composite sampling, may mask materials that may result in delays and difficulty treating the actual site materials.  Customer shall be solely 
                responsible to make sure Products(s)  used  are per Owner's specifications.   Customer assumes full liability for any loss, damage, delay from the use of Watersolve's Product(s)  and shall hold 
                Watersolve harmless from any and all causes of action related to the use of Watersolve's Products(s) due to material character changes from the samples tested.  
            ○ Bonding Costs and Insurance Limits beyond WaterSolve's current limits are not included in the price.
            ○ NO PARTY SHALL BE LIABLE FOR LIQUIDATED, SPECIAL, PUNITIVE, EXEMPLARY, INCIDENTAL, CONSEQUENTIAL OR INDIRECT DAMAGES OR LOST PROFITS,
               WHETHER BASED ON CONTRACT, TORT, STRICT LIABILITY, OTHER LAW OR OTHERWISE AND WHETHER OR NOT ARISING FROM THE OTHER PARTY’S SOLE,
               JOINT OR CONCURRENT NEGLIGENCE, STRICT LIABILITY OR OTHER FAULT. Notwithstanding anything else in this Agreement to the contrary, Watersolve’s aggregate 
               liability for any and all damages of any kind arising out of or related, in whole or in part, to this Agreement shall be limited to the amount that is equal to the Contract Price hereunder
            ○ In the case of Force Majeure, All work that has been completed, including Mobilization and Demobilization, and restocking and shipping of return of custom products, to be 
                included in that month's invoicing to be paid in full.
            ○ Client will not withhold any payment "holdbacks". 

 Rev. 12/14 Page 2



WaterSolve makes no implied warranty of any kind. Customer is solely responsible for determining whether or not Product(s) is suitable for Customer's intended uses.  WaterSolve shall not be held
liable for any Geotextile site excavation or surveying to determine if land is suitable for lay-down. Technical service is limited to setup and operation of WaterSolve equipment.  Any other technical
advice or information is given without consideration.  No such information or advice relieves the Customer from ultimate liability to ensure products are used properly per specifications or from
Customer's sole responsibility to determine whether the Product(s) is suitable or desirable for Customer's intended use.  

WATERSOLVE, LLC - STANDARD TERMS & CONDITIONS

6.         Customer Responsibility.  Customer shall: (a) provide unimpeded site access; (b) provide proper lighting and security to protect against theft of Seller’s equipment; (c) prepare lay-down areas and verify that lay-down area is free of 
sharp objects and debris; (d) perform any required site investigation; (e) perform any required surveying; (f) establish and verify site grades (0.0% side-to-side and maximum 0.5% end-to-end) and ensure that graded conditions conform to 
design drawings, specifications, and standard Geotextile SOP requirements; (g) supply all utilities, including clean water and electrical power; (h) secure and pay for necessary approvals, easements, permits and licenses; (i) comply with 
any applicable law, rule or regulatory requirement, including permitting; (j) conform to any permitting requirements for the discharge of water; (k) adhere to SDS/MSDS for products and proper personal protective equipment; (l) assume 
all risk for the status of any liner not supplied by Seller; and (m) assume all risk of damage to existing liner during the course of Seller’s work.   

7.         Mobilization.  If Seller is providing any on-site services, Seller shall be entitled to a mobilization fee.  Customer shall pay the mobilization fee upon completion of mobilization to Customer’s site.  The mobilization fee includes 
travel, shipping and expenses to transport personnel and equipment to the site.  Customer’s change to Seller’s established project start date may result in mobilization penalties and additional charges.  If delays are encountered after 
mobilization such that Seller’s personnel are not required to be on site, and provided Customer promptly notifies Seller of such conditions, Customer shall pay Seller its Standby Rate equal to two thirds (2/3) of Seller’s established daily 
wage rates.  If a prolonged disruption in its work occurs, Seller may demobilize equipment and personnel from the site and Customer shall be responsible for Seller’s actual demobilization costs and any subsequent re-mobilization costs.

8.         Technical Assistance.  To the extent Seller is engaged to provide on-site services, Seller shall provide such services Monday – Saturday, not to exceed ten (10) hours per day, unless otherwise noted.  Before ordering any Products 
and before engaging any of Seller’s services, Customer shall advise Seller of any special wage requirements, including the requirement to pay state or federal prevailing wages.  Special wage requirements may result in daily wage rates 
higher than those identified in Seller’s Sales Proposal.

9.         Deviation from Standards.  Any quotation, proposal or similar description (hereafter, collectively, “Description”) by Seller of materials or services to be supplied by Seller in connection with this Contract or any quote by Seller in 
response or reference to a particular set of plans or specifications shall be construed and presumed to be a general Description of such materials and services, incorporating Seller’s standard and ordinary details, materials, and scope of 
products contracted for (hereafter, collectively “Seller Standards”). Seller is not obligated to furnish or accommodate any additions to or variations (hereafter “Variations”) from Seller Standards unless such Variations are specifically 
included in a document signed by an authorized Seller representative, and unless such Variations are expressly and conspicuously identified as being different from or additional to Seller Standards. Such Variations shall not be implied in 
any manner nor shall they be merely incorporated by reference to plans or specifications or other descriptions outside of the express provisions of this Contract or express provisions of Descriptions given by Seller. In the event of conflict, 
inconsistency, or ambiguity between any plans and specifications furnished by or on behalf of Customer and Seller Standards, Seller Standards shall control.

1.         Contract.  WaterSolve’s Order Acknowledgement (“Order”) and these Standard Terms & Conditions constitute the complete Contract (“Contract”) between WaterSolve, LLC (“Seller”) and Customer.  This Contract is also subject 
to the terms and conditions of Customer’s Credit Application.

2.         Contract Formation.  Customer’s ordering of any Product or service, Customer’s issuance of any Purchase Order to Seller, Seller’s performance of any service, or Seller’s shipment of any Product shall constitute Customer’s 
acceptance of these Terms & Conditions.  No additional or contrary term in any Customer document is binding upon Seller unless agreed to in writing and signed by Seller’s authorized officer.  Seller’s performance is condition upon 
Customer’s unmodified consent exclusively to these terms. 

3.         Contract Change.  This Contract may be modified only by written authorization of a Vice President of Seller.  Customer may not rely on Seller’s performance, course of dealing, or other conduct as a modification of the Contract.  
Seller’s failure to exercise a right or insist on strict compliance with the Contract shall not be deemed a waiver by Seller.  Customer may not rely on any failure to enforce any rights as a course of dealing.  No waiver by Seller of any breach 
of the Contract will be a waiver of any other breach.

4.         Definitions.   “Circumstances Over Which Seller Has No Control” means circumstances over which Seller has no reasonably cost-effective control, including: weather conditions, raw materials and third-party item shortages; power 
and fuel shortages; unavailability of transportation, including transportation for delivery of raw materials and third-party items; fire, floods, and other acts of God; strikes, lockouts, and shut downs; equipment failures; wars, civil riots, 
embargoes, blockades, trade sanctions and restrictions, and other government actions; and compliance with any law.  “Includes” and “including” do not exclude an item not listed. “May” signifies a right that a party may or may not 
exercise, without waiving the right.  “Or” includes the conjunction of two or more of multiple elements.  “Product” means the materials and other goods and services (if any) described in the Order. “Rights” includes all rights and 
remedies available to Seller at law, in equity and under the Contract.  All rights are cumulative and may be exercised individually or concurrently.  “Third-party item” means any product supplied by third parties.

5.         Customer-supplied information.  Seller may rely upon the accuracy of any information supplied by Customer, including drawings, technical information, testing data, sample submittals, process parameters and material quantities.  
Seller disclaims any responsibility, liability or duty to investigate of and for existing site conditions, adequacy of lay down areas, accuracy of sampling, that samples obtained are representative of site, changed conditions and condition of 
existing liner.   Customer expressly acknowledges that any composite sample provided may mask actual, existing conditions and Customer assumes the risk associated with composite samples, including additional costs for changes in 
design or material.

 Rev. 12/14 Page 3



18.       Maintenance of Labels.  Customer shall maintain all labels, product information materials, and warnings for the Product supplied by Seller or on any container for the Product, and shall restore any such materials that have been 
damaged, defaced, or otherwise made difficult to read.

19.       Defaults.  Seller may delay shipment, reduce amounts shipped, or terminate the Contract if (a) Customer fails to make any payment promptly when due or otherwise fails to comply with the Contract, (b) Customer ceases to 
conduct its operations in the normal course of business, (c) Customer is or becomes unable to pay its obligations as they mature, (d) any proceeding under the Bankruptcy Code or any other insolvency law is brought by or against 
Customer, (e) a receiver for Customer is appointed or an application for a receiver is filed, (f) Customer makes an assignment for the benefit of creditors, or (g) Customer fails to provide adequate assurance of future performance within 
fifteen (15) days after demand by Seller (which will constitute a repudiation by Customer of the unperformed portion of the Contract).  Customer shall reimburse Seller for all costs, including attorneys’ fees, incurred by Seller in 
connection with enforcing the Contract or any right accruing to Seller as a result of the Customer’s breach of Contract.

16.       Payment.  Customer shall pay the Contract Price in United States dollars.  Seller may apply payments to oldest matured invoices first.  Payment is due net thirty (30) days from the date of shipment unless otherwise specified.  
Customer shall pay interest at the rate of eighteen percent (18%) per annum on any invoice not paid within thirty (30) days from the date of shipment.

17.       Limited Warranty. Seller warrants that all Products except third-party items will conform to the description in the Order and to Seller’s Product specifications.  Seller warrants that the Product has been produced in compliance with 
the Fair Labor Standards Act of 1938, as amended.  Seller assigns to Customer all of its rights under warranties of third-party items.

(a)          Disclaimer of Warranty.  Seller makes no express or implied warranty of merchantability. Seller makes no express or implied warranty of fitness for a purpose. Seller makes no express warranty except as described in this 
paragraph.  Seller makes no implied warranty of any kind.  Customer is solely responsible for determining whether or not Product is suitable for Customer’s intended uses.  Seller will not be held liable for any Geotube site excavation or 
surveying to determine if land is suitable for laydown.  Technical Service is limited to setup and operation of Seller equipment.  Any other technical advice requested from Customer is only for informational purposes and such advice does 
not relieve Customer from ultimate liability to ensure products are used properly and per specifications.  Any information or technical advice provided to Customer has been given without consideration, and no such information or advice 
relieves Customer from sole responsibility to determine whether the Product is suitable for Customer’s intended use, including the responsibility to determine whether the Product is desirable.  

(b)          Remedies.  The remedies in this Contract are the only remedies for any failure of the Product to conform to any warranty or for Seller’s breach of any other obligation or for any other claim against Seller that may arise in 
connection with the Contract.  Seller will replace any Product, except third-party items, for which Customer has given Seller written notice of defect within two (2) days from the date of receipt, and for which Seller has verified the defect.  
Remedies are further limited in other provisions of this Contract. 

(c)          Liabilities.  Seller shall not be liable for any special, consequential, incidental, or penal damages, regardless of the legal theory alleged, (including negligence and strict liability), or other rights including, but not limited to, 
damages attributable to loss of profits of revenues, loss of production, loss of the use of the Product, cost of substitute equipment or facilities, down time costs, increased construction costs, equipment and tank cleaning, and claims of 
Customer’s customers or contractors.  Customer shall indemnify, defend and hold Seller harmless from all claims by third parties arising out of or in connection with the Contract, service or Product, including, but not limited to, claims for 
personal injury, property damage, economic loss, or costs of litigation.  Customer shall reimburse Seller for all attorneys’ fees and any other costs incurred in connection with the defense of any such claim.  Seller shall not be liable for any 
damages that might occur due to the presence or conditions of any utilities or materials located around and under any part of Customer’s premises

11.       Delivery Terms.  Unless specified otherwise, delivery terms are CIP (Incoterms, 2010), Customer’s project site.  Seller’s weights establish quantities delivered to the Customer.

12.       Nonconforming Product.  Customer shall inspect all Product promptly upon receipt.  Within two (2) days after delivery of Product, Customer shall notify Seller in writing of any non-conforming Product or any deficiencies or 
shortages; otherwise Customer waives all such claims. Customer’s use or resale of any Product claimed to be non-conforming or deficient shall constitute Customer’s acceptance of such items. Customer shall not withhold payment or 
adjust the amount of the Contract Price because of any such claim. Customer’s sole remedy shall be the replacement or repair by Seller, at Seller's sole option, of non-conforming or deficient items in accordance with the Disclaimer and 
Limited Warranty.

13.        Prices.  The Contract Price excludes all taxes, demurrage charges, special freight delivery terms (Expedited, Weekend or Holiday fees, or freight differentials for quantities smaller than identified in the Sales Proposal) unless 
otherwise stated in the Sales Proposal.  Customer shall pay all present and future taxes applicable to the sale or use of the Product (including sales, use, excise, and value-added taxes).  If the Product is shipped by tank car provided by 
Seller, Customer shall: pay all demurrage and other charges by the carrier; unload the tank car within seven (7) business days after arrival at the destination; and pay a retention charge at Seller’s then current rate for each day or fraction of 
a day (including Sundays and holidays) that Customer retains the tank car after the seven (7) business day period.

14.       Changes.  All changes in the engineering details of any order which Customer requests after final approval of design or drawings are subject to additional charges, including engineering charges and factory charges on any work 
affected by the change.  Such charges shall be added to the Contract Price.  

15.       Custom Orders.  For custom-sized Products, Customer shall pay Seller one half (1/2) of the Product price at the time of Customer’s order.  

10.       Shipment Quantities, Dates, and Returns.  Customer shall give Seller reasonable notice of Product quantities and shipping instructions.  Seller shall not be obligated to ship product if: reasonable notice of quantities and instruction 
is not given; the amount is unreasonably disproportionate to the scheduled amounts; the amount exceeds estimates provided by Customer to which Seller has agreed in writing; or if, in Seller’s sole judgment, the amount is disproportionate 
to the total amount in the Contract.  Expedited orders (those that must be shipped in less than 48 hours) may be subject to $250 expediting fee in addition to all other extra transit fees.  All shipping dates (including firm shipping dates) 
may change as a result of Circumstances Over Which Seller Has No Control.  Any product that meets specifications set forth in a quote or MSDS may be returned, subject to a thirty-five (35) percent restocking fee (35% of quoted price) if 
sent back within 15 days of receipt at Customer’s expense.  The product must not have been opened or contaminated in any way.  Seller has no obligation to accept conforming products returned after 15 days.  Seller may impose 
additional restocking fees on return of custom-sized products.  Customer acknowledges that Seller may not have on hand in Sellers' open stock all of the items purchased by Customer and that Seller will be relying on Customer's 
agreement to purchase such items as a basis for Seller to enter into binding agreement with others for the delivery of such items. Because of Seller’s reliance Customer's obligation to purchase the Product shall be unconditional and 
irrevocable.

 Rev. 12/14 Page 4



26.       Assignments.  Customer may not assign all or any part of this Contract without the written consent of Seller.

27.       Applicable Law.  The Contract shall be construed under the laws of the United States of America and the State of Michigan.  The United Nations Convention on Contracts for the International Sale of Goods shall not apply.

28.       Arbitration.  At the sole option of Seller, all disputes of any kind shall be decided by Arbitration and governed by the applicable rules of the American Arbitration Association (AAA) existing when the claim arose.  The award of the 
arbitrator shall be final and binding and shall be enforceable in a Court of competent jurisdiction.  The sole, exclusive venue for arbitration or any legal proceeding shall in Kent County, Michigan.  This venue provision shall control over 
any contrary AAA rule.

(b)       No Damages for Delay.  Seller shall not be liable for, and Customer covenants not to assert against Seller, any claims or demands for construction or project delays, disruptions, interference, or other losses, damages, costs or 
expenses of any nature whatsoever, attributed to delays in engineering, shipping, delivery or other performance required of Seller or caused by or attributed to missing, misfabricated or otherwise defective or deficient drawings, parts, 
materials and products. No written or oral representation, promise, or undertaking of Seller as to any proposed, anticipated, planned or required date shall be construed to be an undertaking by Seller to assume liability for losses, costs or 
damages of the type and kind disclaimed in the preceding sentence. If any portion of this disclaimer is determined to be subject to a common law or statutory exception, or is otherwise held to be unenforceable in whole or part, the 
remaining portion shall be unaffected.  UNDER NO CIRCUMSTANCES WHATSOEVER SHALL SELLER BE LIABLE FOR CONSEQUENTIAL OR INCIDENTAL DAMAGES FROM ANY DELAY. Customer covenants not to 
assert any claim against Seller in any legal or quasi-legal proceeding that is inconsistent with this provision.  Breach of this covenant shall entitle Seller to recover damages for the costs and expenses, including attorneys’ fees, Seller incurs 
defending against such claims.

22.       Safety.  For any work performed on Customer’s premises, Customer shall furnish a work place free from hazards that may cause harm and Customer agrees to take all reasonable precautions for the safety of Seller’s employees, 
agents or subcontractors.  Customer shall comply with all applicable federal and state safety laws, regulations and orders of any public authority.  Customer shall hold harmless, defend and indemnify Seller from any claim, damage, loss or 
fine, including attorney fees arising from Customer’s failure to comply with any safety requirement, except where Seller is adjudged to be solely negligent.  

23.       Hazardous Materials.  To the fullest extent permitted by law, Customer shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless Seller and Seller’s consultants, agents and employees from and against claims, damages, losses and expenses, 
including attorney fees arising out of the presence of any hazardous materials on Customer’s premises.  

24.       Force Majeure.  Seller will not be liable to Customer for any inability to perform the Contract attributable to circumstances over which Seller has no control.   If Circumstances Over Which Seller Has No Control occur, Seller’s time 
for performance will be extended by the period of any delay attributable to the circumstances, and Seller will be excused from delivery of the Product or may allocate Product among Customers.

25.       Security Interest. The Customer grants and Seller retains a purchase money security interest in the products purchased hereunder until the net Contract Price is fully paid and all other obligations of the Customer are satisfied. 

20.       Assurance of Performance.  Seller may demand from Customer adequate assurance of future performance acceptable to Seller whenever Seller has reasonable grounds for insecurity concerning Customer’s performance.  Until it 
receives adequate assurance of future performance, Seller may suspend its performance under the Contract.  “Reasonable grounds for insecurity” includes the circumstances described in ¶19.  “Adequate assurances of future performance 
acceptable to Seller” will depend on the circumstances.

21.       Limitations on Claims.  Legal proceedings on any claim by Customer or any other party against Seller in any way related to the Contract must be brought within one year from the date of shipment of the Product from Seller’s 
facilities or manufacturer’s facility.  Customer waives all proceedings not brought within one year from the date of Product shipment and all claims and defenses that could have been asserted in such proceedings.  

(a)       Limitation of Remedy.  Regardless of any other provision in the Contract or in any other contract between the parties, Seller’s liability for damages shall be limited to the consideration actually paid to Seller under the Contract.  This 
limitation covers all claims in any way arising out of or resulting from the Contract, regardless of the legal theory alleged, including negligence and strict liability.

 Rev. 12/14 Page 5



1

Marie Bean

From: Chris Tesone <ctesone@usalco.com>
Sent: Thursday, June 20, 2024 10:09 AM
To: Verne Robins
Subject: alum quote

CAUTION: External Email 

 

Hi Verne, 
Your alum price is $293.76 / wet ton. Please let me know if you have any ques ons. 
Thank you, 
 

 

 Chris Tesone 
Director of Sales-North 

   

 2601 Cannery Avenue   |   Baltimore, MD 21226 
M:  330-418-4422   |   ctesone@usalco.com  
Learn more by visiting usalco.com 
This email message and any attachments are confidential information of USALCO. The information is intended to be conveyed only to the 
designated recipient(s) of the message. If you are not an intended recipient, please notify the sender immediately and delete the message from 
your email system. Unauthorized use, dissemination, distribution, or reproduction of this message by other than the intended recipient is strictly 
prohibited and may be unlawful. If you have any concerns, please contact us at info@usalco.com. 

 
 



1

Marie Bean

From: Elhorn Co. <elhorneng@aol.com>
Sent: Wednesday, June 19, 2024 8:19 AM
To: Verne Robins

CAUTION: External Email 

 

Verne, 
 
Carus 8600 30-gallon drum @$455.00 each 
 
Todd 
 
 
Elhorn Company 
889 Eden Road 
Mason, MI  48854 
ph: 517-676-3786 
fax: 517-676-3788 



Regular Council 
Agenda Item Memorandum 

To: The Honorable Mayor, City Council Members, and Sarah Moyer‐Cale 

From: Rob Neil Superintendent of Streets 

Subject: New Truck Purchases for DPS Superintendents 

Meeting Date: July 08,2024 

Recommended Action: 

Motion to approve the purchase of two 2024 GMC Sierra 2500HD trucks through MiDeal from 
Todd Wenzel for a total of $123,992.  

Background information: 

DPS purchases two new trucks on a yearly basis for superintendents to use for work. It has been 
our policy to buy heavy duty, diesel, crew cab trucks that offer a high resale value. We would like to 
purchase these trucks due to a long wait for new orders. 

Financial implications: 

Truck prices have gone up from what was budgeted in previous years, currently budgeted at 
$62,000 each. These trucks are proposed to come from Todd Wenzel Dealer through MiDeal at 
$61,996.00 for a total of $123,992. The current trucks will be sold and funds from the sale will return to 
the equipment fund.  

Attachments:  

 Todd Wenzel Buick‐GMC and Chevrolet quote

11.F





















2024 July Council 
Report 

1 

To:  The City Council  

From:  Travis J. Tate, P.E., Director of Public Services 

Subject:  DPS Monthly Council Report 

Meeting Date: July 08, 2024 

DDA Streetscape Project: 

We are at the homestretch of the project, however it is and will be disruptive to the downtown.  
State Street is mostly closed to vehicle traffic.  Between Boltwood and Michigan a top course of large 
paving areas is being scheduled.  Three blocks between Michigan and Jeferson, Jeferson and Church, and 
Church and Broadway is scheduled for sealcoat application.  This needs time to cure before opening to 
traffic.   

Currently the crosswalks are being constructed.  These are time consuming items, and they cannot 
all be done at once.   There are five currently poured, but need cure time before they can be opened to 
traffic.  The work is extensive as it involves excavation at least 2’deep for the outside 1’ wide collars. This 
also involves setting forms to match existing cross section of the street, placing and finishing concrete, 
removing forms, allowing concrete to cure at least 3 days (They are using 7 sack, i.e. High Early Strength).  
Once the collars have cured then they can ready the larger crosswalk section, which is colored brown, 
and 9” thick. After this is placed then it will take at least 3 days before it is ready for traffic. There are four 
at Church St. intersection, two mid‐block crosswalks, four at Michigan intersection and four at Boltwood 
intersection, totaling 14 to do.  About half will be worked on next, then after they are ready for traffic the 
last will be done.  See photos below of the ones completed: 

13.A



2024 July Council 
Report 

2 



2024 July Council 
Report 

3 



2024 July Council 
Report 

4 

Also, the fireplace is fully installed and operational.  However, it will not be open for public use 
until the project is substantially complete. See photo below: 



2024 July Council 
Report 

5 

Fish Hatchery Restroom Building Project: 

The contract with the city has been signed and had a kick‐off meeting with the contractor (Bultsma) 
and architect (MC Smith) last week.   

Green and Market Street Improvements Project:

Moore & Bruggink along with City staff held a public meeting with residents and business’ 

affected by the upcoming project.  The turnout was as expected and informative.  Most questions were 



2024 July Council 
Report 

6 

answered and feedback was positive.  There will be 4 phases of the project, to minimize impact for 

everyone living or working on Green Street and Market Street.   

The initial phase will begin on Green Street at Fish Hatchery Park and continue to the most 

easterly drive of Pennock Hospital.  The contractor will complete all work before moving on to the 

second phase, which is easterly drive to Market Street.  Third phase is from Market Street to Broadway 

Avenue.  Fourth phase is on Market from State Street to Green Street.  Please see attached phase 

diagram. 

DWAM Lead Line Replacement Program: 

The Fiscal Year 25 Plumbing Contract with the assumption of Council approval of the Plumbing 
Contract, will begin in Mid‐August through October, and again next Spring.  DPS is currently identifying 
addresses and will coordinate with the tenants/property owners to schedule work inside the houses. We 
are planning on completing 100 service replacements.  This will be the first year we are implementing a 
full, annual amount of replacements.  This will continue until all lead services are replaced. 

City Paint Markings & Streetline Painting : 

2024 Streetline Painting contract schedule will begin in Mid‐August through September 20th. 

DWSRF and USDA Loan Applications: 

Moore & Bruggink, the consulting engineer is preparing USDA RD Loan applications and DWSRF 

Plan application was submitted before June 1. 

Upcoming Summer Projects: 

 Parking Lot 8 Improvement

 Cemetery Memorial Wall Construction

 WTP Generator Wall

 Final Clarifier #2 Upgrade Engineering

I will gladly answer any questions that Council members have at the meeting. 

Respectfully, 

Travis Tate, P.E. 

DPS Director





Fire Department Council Report June 2024  

The department responded to 79 calls for service: 35 in the city, 42 in the townships and 2 mutual aids.  Our 

members spent a total of 310 hours responding to calls for service. Total calls for service is 375 YTD.  

Training  

Our members trained a total of 48 hours for the month of June. We focused on ropes, knots and rope rescue, 

along with pump operations and extrication.  

Faith Stauffer successfully passed the National Registry exam which allows her to obtain a MFR license from the 

State of Michigan.    

Smoke/ CO detector installations 

We installed 8 smoke detectors and 3 carbon monoxide detectors in June. Most of these where installed while we 

responded to a defective alarm.   

Department activities  

During the month of June, we saw a dramatic increase in Calls for Service (CFS) jumping from 49 in May to 79 in June. 

We conducted 3 business fire safety compliance inspections and 1 home inspections.  

Chief’s comments 

We are still  looking  to add a couple more members to our paid‐on call staff; we would  like to be at 21‐25 total 

members we are at 19, so getting close.  We have some renewed interest after the front‐page article last week. As 

you may recall, we started issuing burn permits from the station in February, as of today we have issued 305 permits 

in the townships.  We do not issue permits in the city, but we remind residents of the open burning ordinance.  

On Wednesday June 26th, we held a critical  incident debrief, this was  in response to two traumatic  incidents we 

responded  to over  the  last couple of weeks. Facilitating  the debriefing were members of  the Grand Rapids Fire 

Department and other volunteers who take their time to talk with fire department members who have had to deal 

with critical incidents.  This was attended by our members who were on the calls as well as staff from Mercy and 

Central dispatch. The meeting is intended to give members the tools to cope with difficult incidents. Our thanks go 

out to the debriefing team for their support of a neighboring fire department.  

Respectfully, 

Chief Mark Jordan

13.B



   

 

 

 
 
 



   

 

 

 
 



13.C

































Regular Council 
Agenda Item Memorandum 

To:            City Council 

From:        Assessing Department 

Subject:    Assessing Report 

Meeting Date:   July 2024 

Recommended Action:  

Background Information:  

Over the last month we have been working on the following: 

 In the process of visiting all open building permits

 Reviewing the sales study for the 2024 assessments

 July Board of Review, July 17 at 11 am.

If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Debbie Rashid 

Financial Implications:  

Attachments: 

13.D



June 20, 2024 
YMCA Updates for the City of Hastings 

CAMP 
 We are wrapping up staff training from June 7 – June 21. This year we have 8

international staff from the UK, Hungary, Mexico and Spain; American camp staff = 5
 Kitchen = Jay + 6, including 3 HS students
 Maintenance = Scott + 5, including 2 HS students
 As of June 20, we have 412 unique campers (505 registrations) and 69 openings;

last year total we had 431 unique campers (541 registrations)

OUTREACH and RECREATION 
 Many of our outreach staff and community builders are back for another summer of

Playground, B. Bus and Y on the Fly, Golf, Tennis and more
 Gina has 14 staff (so far) who started programs June 10th.
 We are supported by 4 school districts, Summer Food programs, and the Partners for

Youth annual campaign.

Y-TIME CHILDCARE
 Marci and Shay are back at it for their 5th summer together at the Nazarene Church.
 There are 41 families signed up (12 preschool and 29 school age)
 We are still trying to hire PT staff to fill up our rosters. (could add 2 PS and 7 SA

spots w/ 2 more staff)
 STEM learning is a component that keeps our funding levels high from the State

Alliance.

FACILITY AND MAINTENANCE 
 Camp looks amazing. We’re sticking to our Master Plan, and the list continues to

grow with possibilities to improve areas and space.
 The new building site is coming along. The new construction calendar should be

available mid-summer.

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENTS 
 Megan graduated from Leadership Barry County.
 The B. Bus joined the HPL for summer reading kick-off.
 We had a bus/tent at Very Barry.
 Flexfab health fair representation.
 We had 3 Youth Quest Staff join our summer staff challenge course training.
 I brought a few international staff to Rotary.
 Youth Quest is scheduled this weekend for the first time in 5 years

Respectfully submitted, 
Jon Sporer, CEO 
Nichole Lyke, YMCA Board Secretary 

14.A



City of Hastings 

Downtown Development Authority 

DRAFT Meeting Minutes 

June 20, 2024 

1. Meeting Call to Order and Roll Call—

The meeting was called to order at 8:01 a.m. by Woods. 

Roll Call –  

Present: Baker, Button, Hatfield, Peterson, Tossava, Wiswell, Woods 
Absent: Albrecht, Ulberg 
City Staff and Appointees: Hoke, King, Ponsetto, Resseguie 
Others Present: Nichole Lyke (BCCEDA), Steve Arnest (Outfront Media) 

2. Pledge to the Flag

3. Approval/Additions/Deletions to Agenda –

Wood suggested that Item 9A. be moved forward on the agenda, so Lyke could leave to attend another 

meeting 

Motion by Wiswell, second, by Hatfield, to approve the agenda as modified 

All ayes, motion carried 

4. Approval of Minutes –

Motion by Wiswell, second by Tossava, to approve the minutes of the May 16, 2024, DDA meeting as 

presented. 

All ayes, motion carried 

5. Financial Statements & Budget for Review –

King said the budget information included in the DDA packet was updated through May 31, 2024. He also 

said that work would begin on Parking Lot 8 as soon as the streetscape project was completed in July. 

14.B



 

6. Façade and BEIG Update‐  

 

King said the façade grant spreadsheet has been updated through May 31, 2024. As requested at the May 

16th meeting, staff has prepared a spreadsheet reflecting yearly façade grant expenditures dating to June 30, 

2015. He said the spreadsheet indicates the aggregate amount of the façade grant committed funds that 

underspent since 2015. And, as with all line‐item budget categories, budgeted dollars not spent during the 

fiscal year budgeted are added to the fund balance. 

 

7. Open Public Comment and Discussion – None 

9.  New Business 

A. Barry County Chamber of Commerce and EDA Request of $250.00 for Small Business Bootcamp 

Workshop Segment 3 Sponsorship‐ 

Motion by Tossava, second by Hatfield, to approve the expenditure of $250.00 to sponsor Segment 3 of the 

Small Business Bootcamp Workshop. 

Ayes: Baker, Button, Hatfield, Peterson, Tossava, Woods 
Nays: Wiswell 
Absent: Albrecht, Ulberg 
 
6 in favor, 1 against, motion carried 
 
 8.  Old Business‐  

  A. Billboard Marketing Presentation by Steve Arnest from Outfront Media‐ 

Arnest answered questions from the DDA board about the DDA’s current contract and a potential contract 

for 2024‐2025. 

Motion by Wiswell, second by Hatfield, to approve the expenditure of $24,050.00 for static and digital 

billboard and mobile advertising for the 2024‐ 2025 fiscal year. 

Ayes: Beker, Button, Hatfield, Peterson, Wiswell, Woods 
Nays: Tossava 
Absent: Albrecht, Ulberg 
 
6 in favor, 1 against, motion carried 
 
  B. Streetscape Update‐ 
 
King gave an update and answered questions about the streetscape project. 
 
   
 



C. Street Banner Discussion‐ 
 
The board discussed the City’s current street banner policy and the possibility of making changes to that 
policy. 
 
Button left the meeting at 9:17 a.m. 
 
Hatfield left the meeting at 9:21 a.m. 
 
9. New Business‐ 

 
B. Consider conducting PA 57 of 2018 Informational Meeting at the July 18, 2024, DDA Meeting. 

 
 It was the consensus of the board to conduct PA 57 of 2018 Informational Meeting during the July 18, 2024 
meeting 
 
10.  DDA Member Comment – None 

11.  Open Public Comment and Discussion – None 

12.  Adjournment 

Motion by Tossava, second by Baker, to adjourn. 

All ayes, motion carried. 

Meeting adjourned at 9:25 a.m. 

 

 

_______________________                                         ____________________________ 

 Patty Woods, Chair                                                          Deb Button, Secretary 

 

 

Prepared by: Sandra Ponsetto, City of Hastings 



Hastings Public Library Board of Trustees 
 Minutes 

Date: July 1, 2024 – 4:30PM 
Location: Hastings Public Library, 227 E. State St., Hastings, MI 49058 

Community Room 

1. CALL TO ORDER
The Meeting was called to order by Chloe Kelly at 4:33 p.m.
 Board members present:  Jane Cybulski, Carol Dwyer, Sam Cale, Chloe

Kelly, Rebecca Lectka, Norm Barlow, Kelli Newberry and Cloe Oliver. Not
present was Brenda Stacy.

 Also present were Peggy Hemerling and David Edelman.

2. AGENDA: Kelly Newberry motioned to approve agenda as amended for new
business item, seconded by Sam Cale. Motion approved.

3. MINUTES:    Norm Barlow motioned to approve the May 6, 2024, minutes,
seconded by Rebecca Lectka.  Motion approved.

4. FINANCIALS:
a. April and May 2024 Invoices and Budget Reports:  Cloe Oliver motioned

to approve the financials, seconded by Rebecca Lectka. Motion approved.

5. LIBRARY DIRECTOR REPORTS: May and June 2024

6. COMMITTEES
a. Budget and Finance –
b. Building and Grounds – Set meeting for July 16th, 3:00 p.m.
c. Personnel – Set meeting on July 9th, 4:30 p.m.
d. Policy – Set meeting on August 20th, 3:00 p.m.
e. Marketing-

7. NEW BUSINESS
a. Sam Cale motioned to allowing the library to be closed on October 16,

2024 for staff training. Seconded by Cloe Oliver. Motion passed.

8. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS
a. Sam Cale comments on how impressed he is by how much the library

staff does.

8. NEXT MEETING DATE
a. Next board meeting on Monday, August 5, 2024, at 4:30 p.m.

9. ADJOURNMENT: Meeting was adjourned at 4:57 p.m.

14.C


	0 Executive Summary.pdf
	5.0 Agenda 07 08 2024.pdf
	6.0 Special Meeting Minutes 06 24 2024.pdf
	6.1 Meeting Minutes 06 24 2024.pdf
	10.A Invoices 07 08 2024.pdf
	10.B MML Worker's Comp Fund Ballot.pdf
	10.C Resignation Letter-Planning Commission (signed).pdf
	11.A Hastings Summerfest 2024 Resolution 2024-19.pdf
	11.B Central Elementary PTO STOMP for Books.pdf
	11.C FY25 Lead Line Replacement Plumbing Contract.pdf
	11.D Street Line Painting Contract.pdf
	11.E Chemical Proposals.pdf
	11.F New Truck Purchases DPS Superintendents.pdf
	13.A DPS July Monthy Report.pdf
	13.B Fire Chief Report 07 08 2024.pdf
	13.C Library Director May and June 2024 Reports.pdf
	13.C_May Director's Report 2024.pdf
	13.C1_June Director's Report 2024.pdf

	13.D Assessor Report 7 8 2024.pdf
	14.A YMCA City of Hastings Update 06 20 2024.pdf
	14.B 06 20 2024 DRAFT DDA Minutes.pdf
	14.C Library Board Minutes Draft 07 01 2024.pdf

	COUNTY OF BARRY STATE OF MICHIGAN: 
	Procurement Number: 2024-06001
	Bid Name: Street Painting Project
	Opening Date  Time: June 27  10:30AM
	Name: Michigan Paving Markings
	Amount: 34,976.00
	Name_2: 
	Amount_2: 
	Name_3: 
	Amount_3: 
	Name_4: 
	Amount_4: 
	Name_5: 
	Amount_5: 
	Name_6: 
	Amount_6: 
	Name_7: 
	Amount_7: 
	Name_8: 
	Amount_8: 
	Name_9: 
	Amount_9: 
	Opening 1: 
	Opening 2: Travis Tate, Amy Hubbell
	1: 
	2: 
	Bid Granted to: 
	PO: 
	ISSUED TO: 
	ON: 
	Process Final Sign Off By: 
	ON_2: 


